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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. Good afternoon, Members. The Budget
and Finance Committee meeting is now in session. The time is 1:35. I'd
like to introduce the Members that are here this afternoon. We do have
Member Anderson, Member Baisa, Member Medeiros, Member Molina,
and Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, good afternoon.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good afternoon. Excused this afternoon are Member,
Members Mateo, Johnson, and our Council Chair Member Hokama.
Representing the Administration this afternoon, we do have Adrianne
Heely, Deputy Corporation Counsel; Mr. Kalbert Young, Director of
Finance; Mr. Scott Teruya, Acting Administrator for Real Property Tax;
and in the audience we do have Abi Fernandez, Real Property Tax
Division. Supporting the Committee this afternoon, we do have Lance
Taguchi, our Legislative Analyst, as well as Yvette Bouthillier, our
Committee Secretary.
Members, we do have two items on the agenda this afternoon, BF-58 as
well as ... BF-58 actually is the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit and BF-53
Acquisition-Based Tax Reform. Before we go into our agenda this
afternoon, the Chair would like to receive public testimony. People that
are testifying this afternoon, you have three minutes to provide testimony
with one minute to conclude. If you can state your name and the
organization that you represent, Chair would appreciate that.
Members, as well as the audience if you could put your cell phone on the
off position or silent mode position, the Chair would really appreciate that.
Okay, Members, we do have three testifiers this afternoon. The first to
testify is Mr. Bill Tavares .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. TAVARES: Good afternoon. Thank you for having us here today. Tony
Fisher and I know a number of homeowners who made out Circuit
Breaker applications, forms exactly as explained by the Property Tax
Department form and the tax bill and we followed the instruction, "if
Line 4 is greater than Line 3 you do not qualify." Needless to say we did
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not file and consequently we'll have to pay at least $1,000 more than we
should have paid. Tony, will you please continue this conversation after I
get through with any questions they may have here?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Are you done, Mr. Tavares?
MR. TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the-MR. TAV ARES: A very brief introduction.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --testifier? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Tavares, thank you for being here.
Were you informed that you had made a mistake? How, how did you find
the error?
MR. TAVARES: I found the error because of our tax expert's analysis of the
whole situation. Tony Fisher.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So ...
MR. TAV ARES: I really felt, well, it's every other year I'm going to benefit,
honest to God. I mean honest to a higher power.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Laughter.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, what was, what did, what did you then
do once you found there was an error?
MR. TAVARES: Well, we, we, well, I'm going to let Tony continue with that-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. TAV ARES: --discussion, please because he has the details all very well
stated there, the steps that we have taken so far.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Tavares.
MR. TAVARES: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: And thank you, Mr. Chair.
MR. TAV ARES: All right.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. I just want to get
a clarification. You're saying that the instructions on the Circuit Breaker
Tax Credit application are inaccurate?
MR. TAVARES: We aren't saying that but I want Tony to explicitly explain
why.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: All right. Thank you.
MR. TAV ARES: That is the older form, the former, the, the form we used for
last year. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And it's since been corrected?
MR. TAV ARES: I would assume. Yes, I think it has been.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Members, any more
questions for the testifier? If not, again, thank you, Mr. Tavares.
MR. TAVARES: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The second person to provide testimony is Tony Fisher.
MR. FISHER: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and Members of the County Council. I'll
cover some of the things that was just brought up as part of this. The
Circuit Breaker is in our estimation one of the best things that the County
of Maui has ever done. It is wonderful for we who have relatively low
incomes. The Circuit Breaker is wonderful except for the fact that there
are two things that were wrong last year when we went to make this thing
out. And thus we have proposed an ordinance to clarify that from our
standpoint.
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Now, let me tell you what the two issues are to answer the question. This
is the form that we were to make out. And on it it says, enter the amount
of real property tax for the current year. Okay. The problem is that the
ordinance, which you passed some years ago says, please enter the real
property tax assessed. And by the way the directions that you may, may
or may not go look at specifically said that. But the problem is that the
form itself did not. And when you go and look at your tax bill, and this is
my tax bill in which, as Bill Tavares just mentioned, this is the bill that I
had. And here's what it says, enter the amount of, first of all, you
compute your adjusted gross income, multiply it by 3 percent, 2Yz percent
or 2 percent over a three-year period. That was all fine.
The next thing it says, enter the amount of real property tax. Now, this is
my tax bill on which I did this particular computation. This is the bill.
And on it it has a field called "tax". It has a line at the bottom that says
"total" then at extreme right-hand it says "total" again. That number on
my tax bill is what I entered on the form. The next line says, subtract
Line 4 from Line 3. If 4 is greater than 3 you do not qualify do not
continue. That is the only number that's on this form.
Now, I sent a letter to the Finance Department and said we got a problem
with this. The answer I got back was, oh, the numbers are there. You go
up to the top of the page and you add these two numbers together. But
when you do that then in fact you have the right number now that's not
what the form says in any way shape or manner. It specifically says, now
this column is labeled tax, this is total, that's total tax. It says render the
real property tax. I have no way in the world of figuring out what more
you could conclude out of this document.
So, both the form itself and the tax bill are incorrect. Now, how do we
know that? Since we had, and somebody asked the question about what
have you done.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. FISHER: We found this out, we went to the Real Property, to the Finance
Department, had a meeting, and they said you're right that's wrong. And
so they changed two things. The first thing they changed was the, the tax
bill. And all of you got a copy of it this year. Is different. It now has the
total tax in where, the number, the exactly the place where we took our
number from but it's not the same number anymore. And number two,
the, the application now says real property tax assessed. So, they have
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fixed it. And I don't think there's anything that could be clearer than it
was wrong they fixed it.
Now, that's wonderful in 2007 but this is, all deals with 2006. And what
our ordinance asks is that we be given 30 days to re-file.
MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
MR. FISHER: Put this on the way it should have been had we known what we
were supposed to do. So, that is what the purpose of submitting the
correspondence to you and being here today.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Fisher. Members, any questions for
Mr. Fisher? Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Tony, I guess the question begs to say
that since we allowed you 30 days, the 30 days was from when you
completed the 2006 estimates, is that what you telling me?
MR. FISHER: No. We've never been allowed the 30 days. We asked-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. FISHER: --specifically that we be given this and the Finance Department
said we can't do that because it's against the Code. I have that in writing.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. FISHER: It is interesting the day that I was told that The Maui News had an
... {inaudible} . .. article in there that the Finance Department had just
granted 30 days for people who could not pay their trash bill on time. I
don't know what the difference between allowing 30 days here, and not
30 days here is not important. All I know is that we, we should be allowed
a period of time to file. We didn't make the mistake. Both of these forms
are wrong.
Now, you say well why didn't that happen the first year? Well, see the
first year before you took the Circuit Breaker ... {inaudible} . .. Circuit
Breaker credit that number was correct. It's only in the second and the
succeeding years that you have a problem and as Bill Tavares mentioned
what we all thought was you get it for a year, you lose it for a year, you
get it for a year, you lose it for a year because it said real property tax.

-6-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
October 29, 2007

And I don't think there's anybody here or on television that would
compute the word "tax" to mean anything other than what you pay. Tax
assessed entirely different meaning.
And we sat in the meeting with Real Property Tax Department and the
Finance Department, they actually went out and got a copy of the
ordinance and gave it to us. I gave all of you a set of material over a
period of time that has every single bit of this information and I think
there's 12 pages or something that tells you all of the detail. It's, we're not
mad at anybody. All we're saying is it's costing people over, in our case,
over $1,000 because of the fact that something was wrong. Give us a
chance. Let us file. By the way, the first tax for this year was due in
August. We paid our tax bill-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And ...
MR. FISHER: --we expect to have it refunded but that's a different issue.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, I, I guess that was my next
question. Do you also say that we as a, as a County because the mistake
was ours that in, I'll ask the Department this later, but from your estimate
we should find some means of retro back to that date and making the
correction and crediting you or whatever we may decide to do the monies
that are due back to you and whomever else what had-MR. FISHER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --made that mistake?
MR. FISHER: Specifically, what we, the, you, we were allowed to file as of
12/31/06.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: '06. Okay.
MR. FISHER: Obviously, we didn't file because we looked at the piece of paper,
it said you do not qualify don't file. It was after that that I happened to be
talking to a lady in the Real Property Tax Department and she said, "Tony,
you're wrong that's not what it says." And I said real property tax. She
said no it's real property tax assessed. And I said that's not what it says.
And she said yeah but that's what it means. Well, nonsense.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Tony. I have questions
for the Department but if you want to, I'll yield to my colleagues to ask
Tony questions then I'd like to ask the Department a few questions,
please, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino, you'll have your time when we conclude
our presentation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Public testimony.
MR. FISHER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any more questions for Mr. Fisher at this
time? Thank you very much.
MR. FISHER: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The last testifier that signed up before the meeting
started is John Blumer-Buell.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Aloha, Chair Pontanilla, and Committee Members. My
name is John Blumer-Buell. I came over from Hana today and the, I'm
going to be testifying on both agenda items. I didn't have the numbers
before it started so it's not on my paper. More than four years ago at the
October 6, 2003 Mayor's Budget hearing in Hana, my written testimony
included the following statements: "I suggest your Administration and the
Council Budget Committee compile baseline information on what
residents paid for their property and their current assessed valuation. This
baseline information would allow the Administration and Council to
illustrate how the tax assessment rollback idea would affect the current
fiscal year budget or a proposed budget. With emphasis, the baseline
information would also help the Administration and Council to examine
different budget and tax options that are, are available to resolve the
current crisis."
Because there continues to be a lack of comprehensive and complete
property tax baseline information and a computer program that could
quickly work through any possible budget scenario, the Administration
and County Council continue to make budget decisions based upon
incomplete information. This includes any new version of the Circuit
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Breaker, any proposed caps on assessments or new tax rates on one or
more categories. I suggest directing a current County of Maui employee
in the Finance Department or a hired consultant to compile baseline
information in a computer program that would allow quick access to
possible financial options in which to make the best possible financial
decisions for the people ofMaui.
Such an information-gathering program could quickly help to frame and
resolve financial questions and issues on an ongoing basis. The following
examples are all tied to a possible change in the Circuit Breaker and to
acquisition-based taxation. One, can we afford to pay for possible new
infrastructure and/or replacement infrastructure while keeping the ratio a
general bonded debt at the current 6.5 percent or 10 percent or 20 percent?
What would be the income to the County of Maui if property taxes were
based on an acquisition-based tax assessment for the estimated 39,000 to
44,000 residential properties?
Please consider that the current inventory of homes and properties owned
by long-term residents is for many affordable housing. The current
market-value based tax system has in the past and is currently close to
driving some local residents out of their affordable housing.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Councilmember Medeiros correctly identified this
taxation issue in addressing the affordable housing component of the
Wailea 670 project. The solution however is not in isolating local
residents to try to sustain livable property tax levels. That is unlikely in a
market-value drive ... based assessment system. We need to create a new
property tax category for families who are willing to put their properties in
a personal family trust with no intention of selling. Nearly all Hawaiians I
know do not consider the aina to be a commodity that will, they will one
day sell.
Number four, what are the different property tax and debts scenarios
planning for the payment of the approximately $300 million unfunded
mandate of County employee health and retirement benefits?
MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Chair, could I read three more points and finish with
that?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Why don't you continue until you end, John.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Okay. I'll go, jump down to number six to save some
time. What would be the impact upon property taxes if the County of
Maui borrows $1 billion to finance infrastructure, finance the unfunded
mandate, and refinance the current $187,199,000 in General Obligation
Bonds? In the future if we have 30 percent, 40 percent, or 50 percent-plus
of retirees eligible for the Circuit Breaker, what will be the impact on the
long-term budget? What can we afford at what cost? What if there is a
monetary crisis in the County, State, or Federal Government? What if
there is an international monetary crisis? All these things should be, being
analyzed on a regular ongoing basis so it be the most, the best money is
spent to help you out.
In conclusion, as a County and community we need to be working to solve
these questions and issues every working day of the year. Without
question the Administration and Council would be able to make better and
informed long-term choices regarding property taxation in the overall
budget. Malama pono and mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Blumer-Buell. Members, any questions
for the testifier? Member Medeiros followed by Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, John,
for being out here and for your sharing that information. I know you said
at the beginning you weren't sure of the agenda item numbers but you
were testifying on both of them?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Yes. I didn't have the BF-58 for the Circuit Breaker-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: --or BF-53 Acquisition-Based Tax Reform numbers.
So, if you note that it's really, it overlaps both of them really.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Right. So, in following your
testimony on your written submittal, give me an idea of what you would
support as a real property tax system? Acquisition-based or assessment
based?
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MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Well, what we have been talking about with COMET
for a number of years is to look at the ... acquisition-based assessment
system in, in replacing the market value assessment system. Now the
question is, then been, well, how far will we roll it back? In other words,
somebody that, that acquired their property in the 1800s for a few hundred
dollars, you'd have to somehow find a fair baseline for that. So, what,
what I'm testifying to is, I mean, in my going through it I think the
acquisition-based system is more fair. And I think Tony Fisher and Bill
Tavares presented good information more than a year ago on millions of
dollars that are being lost in, every year in revenues by having properties
assessed at their acquisition value.
There were many properties that were sold for let's say 2 million and the,
the assessment was 1 million. So, we lost the, that assessment. Now,
what I'm really pushing for and is to, is to set up a system to really look at
these baseline things. I am not married to the idea of an acquisition-based
system. Why not put our 66,000 TMKs into a computer program that you
can, that you can put every option you want to in there. You can work all
the different tax classifications; you can play with the homeowners. I
know that's, we have a very good homeowner's rate right now and the
Circuit Breaker is very good but, you know, there seems to be resistance
just to the idea of even getting the baseline information.
I mean what, I'm not, it doesn't, I'm not afraid if the numbers show that
the acquisition-based system really won't work then I would, can see that.
On the other hand if we run the numbers and it clearly shows that the
market, that the market-value based system is really not fair and is hurting
long-time residents then I think that the choice would be clearer. And then
the, then the question becomes how far would you roll it back. We've had
a few scenarios. I went through tax information from the Council for the
last five years and dug up several scenarios that were suggested by people
other than COMET.
And so, again, you know, with, with the, this computer program you could
put all these different scenarios into it. And you could, you can project,
you know, if we have, if we know that we're going to need $500 million
worth of, of infrastructure you can put that in there, amortize it over 20 or
30 years. Ifwe know we need $300 million for the, to retire the unfunded
mandate, you can put all that in there and you can amortize it over
whatever it turns out to be. It could be 25 or 30 years using different rates.
I mean every variable you can think of could easily be programmed into

- 11 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
October 29, 2007

something so you'd, you'd know exactly what your options are. And I
know it's possible.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. Thank you for coming
out from Hana to testify. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know I think
you answered my question, John. I was going to say is that in today's
high tech world isn't it not reasonable to assume that there is a program
out there that could plug all these numbers in and run these various
scenanos.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I am, I am sure it is and I'm sure you could find
thousands of computer designers and program designers that could make
one just for Maui County. I'm talking about one just for Maui County that
has as baseline our 66,000 TMKs with what people paid for them as
baseline information, what people, what the current market-value rates are
as baseline. And then all of these variables can very easily be put in there
like a spreadsheet. You know if you decide you're going to raise the
homeowners to $3 and lower the commercial rates to whatever, you could
plug both of those in. A fast computer would, would, would compute that
in very little time.
So, you could start to develop towards really a fairer system. This is not a,
this is not a far out idea at all. In fact I'm disappointed it hasn't been
done. And we do have, the Department of Finance does have all
66,000 properties in a computer that is set up with a market-value based
system. That's how we get our tax bill. So, they should very easily be
able to expand it and start exploring the other options.
Last, I'd like to, last thought I'd like to throw out is we we're talking
about this kind of thing at the General Plan Advisory Committee. We're
hearing from, we've heard from the Police and the Fire people, and they
have, they have tens, and tens, and tens of millions of dollars for new fire
stations, police stations, we have possible ... {inaudible} . .. you know, all
these different expenses and at some point I, I think that people are going
to want to say well what is the, we know what the expense side is. It's
easy to spend money. What is income side? How can it be fairer? And,
you know, number seven which I didn't read said should we double the
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population of the island
displacing local residents.

III

hopes of paying off higher debt while

I mean that seems very obvious to me, but Mr. Kalbert Young who I have
a great deal of respect for and I think does a very good job gave the GP AC
a very good presentation last week. And, you know, he threw out the
scenario that the County is in good enough shape where we probably
could borrow a billion dollars. Well, then the question is why would we
want to and what does it mean? You know to me right off the bat it means
probably the taxes would go up by five times but not necessarily. So, all
these factors I think through a good program could, would be answered.
And I think it's worth the taxpayer's money to hire the best person we can
get to be running these things.
In fact, it might even be a program that could be available online so that,
so that people could work on it and, and try to run their ideas through it.
Not, not to sabotage a computer system but people have ideas and they
could plug in what their ideas are and, and see what the results would be.
That would be real interactive government. So-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, it sure would.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: --mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks, John. So, just one other question.
You know you were mentioning that COMET last year made some kind of
an estimate that they thought we were, we could raise an additional billion
dollars by assessing at acquisition. And that because we're not doing that,
in other words, if someone purchases a home for 2 million but it's only
being assessed at 1 million.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Why is that happening?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Well, I think, I think you'd have to look at the, you
know, the, the, the way the system is working. One of the things that
COMET suggested which I think is very good and that is as a requirement
of a closing, a real estate closing, that the price of the sale would have to
be recorded within a week or five days. What we've been having is, is
some properties flipping two or three times and it can be years before the,
the, the, the, the latest price gets recorded. So, it should be, I think it's a
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good suggestion to have those sales recorded immediately at the Tax
Office and, and recalculate the assessment.
I would defer to Tony on this but my recollection is that Tony and his
computer friend ran I think it was 5,000 sales that, that the County had
given him. And my, my recall, and subject to Tony's correction, is that
the calculation was that there was about $5 million of taxes that were
being lost per year based on under-assessments and assessments not being
recorded at the time of the sale. So, that's ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's, and that's primarily because of
a lag time.
MR.

BLUMER-BUELL:
Well, yeah, lag time and also
under-assessment. But Tony could speak to this better.
run ... was it 5,000, Tony, 5,000 sales?

then the
They did

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Anyway ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: They're going to do a presentation and, you know, if
that particular question-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Discuss that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --they can, they can discuss.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Yeah. But the, I think the final thing is once again if
you had a reliable, if you had somebody working on these problems you
could have them answered ... {inaudible}. .. question they'd be
indisputable. Maybe we would have more tax revenue available. That's
always been one of COMET's contentions is a change in the tax system
would make it fairer but would also increase the amount of revenue. So-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: --thanks very much for your time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, John. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, John. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? If not, thank you again. Is there anyone in the audience that
want to testify at this time that hadn't had a chance to come up prior to the
meeting to sign up for our testimony? Seeing none. Members, if there's
no objection, the Chair would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

ITEM NO. 58:

CIRCUIT BREAKER TAX CREDIT (c.e. No. 07-255)

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, again, the first item on, this afternoon is
BF-58 ... (change of tape lA - 2:06 p.m.) ... Circuit Breaker Tax Credit.
The Committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 07-255
transmitting correspondence dated July 26, 2007 from Bill Tavares,
Chairman, and Tony Fisher, Vice-Chairman, Committee for More
Equitable Taxation, also known as COMET, relating to concerns with the
annual Circuit Breaker Tax Credit application. And transmitting a draft
bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION
3.48.780 OF THE MAUl COUNTY CODE CONCERNING THE
CIRCUIT BREAKER CREDIT".
Members, this afternoon we'll have a presentation from the Finance
Department on the Circuit Breaker Tax Credit. But before we do that, I'd
like to have comments from Mr. Young before we start the presentation if
you have any.
MR. YOUNG: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair, and Members. My only comment
would be just to announce that at the request of the Chair I'll be giving
you a presentation on the Circuit Breaker Program. It's a very brief
presentation because it's a very simple ... program and process. So, I've
included with that a presentation that's been given out to senior groups,
community groups on the Circuit Breaker application process. We do it
each year. It's a little bit more involved than the actual presentation
because we don't actually do a PowerPoint presentation to community
groups and seniors but we've put one together for your folks benefit.
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So, at the Chair's discretion we're prepared to do the presentation.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. And, Members, for your information the
current Circuit Breaker Tax Credit is 2.5 percent for this fiscal year and it
goes down to 2 percent in Fiscal Year '09. So, you know, in Fiscal '09
you'll see people that are qualified for Circuit Breaker a reduction in their
taxes. Members, at this time, the Chair would like to take a short recess to
lower our screen so that the Department can provide us with their
presentation. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We'll be allowed to ask questions after the
presentation?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Just to know that. Okay. Thank
you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

2:09 p.m.
2:11 p.m.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. At this time, I'd like to turn over the program
or presentation to our Director of Finance, Mr. Kalbert Young. Kalbert.
MR. YOUNG: All right, Mr. Chair, and Members, this is the presentation on the
Circuit Breaker Real Property Tax Credit that's comprised or composed
from various statistics regarding the program. My name is Kalbert Young.
I'm the Director for the Department of Finance. With me today to answer
questions will be Scott Teruya, who's the acting Real Property Tax
Administrator, and Ms. Abi Fernandez, who's the Real Property Tax
Collection Supervisor, and whose section is charged with administering
this program.
First of all, the Circuit Breaker Real Property Tax Credit is established in
Maui County Code Chapter 3.48.780. It's a tax credit that is equal to the
amount of real property tax, which exceeds a percentage of adjusted gross
income or as referred to as AGI. Currently, the threshold for the
Real ... for the Circuit Breaker Credit is a 2.5 percent AGI, and that
threshold will be lowered to 2 percent beginning in the tax year for 2009
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and 2010. That means that the application deadline for the 2 percent will
be in the calendar year 2008.
The annual application process is established by Code as August 18t
through December 31 8t and is, and the credit is only allowable on property
with an established homeowner classification meaning that it's only for
owner occupant property not for investment or any of the other property
tax classification on properties. There's actually only two sources of
information that you need to complete the Circuit Breaker application.
And for the current calendar year that would be the 2006 Federal Income
Tax Return. That's the tax return that taxpayers submitted to beat the
April 15th deadline for filing their Federal taxes. The AGI is on anyone of
the tax forms that is required to be submitted. So, you're probably more
familiar with either the form 1040, 1040A, 1040EZ, or any of the other
forms, and again it's the adjusted gross income.
You'll also need your, to know your 2007 - 2008 real property tax bill.
That's the tax bill that was mailed out for payment due on August 2007
and February 2008. And the credit that you apply for by December 31 8t is
going to be applied on your 2008 - 2009 real property tax bill which are
the taxes due on August 2008 and February 2009. This is a graph that
shows the Circuit Breaker enrollment for the last ten years. As you can
see the initial year actually of the Circuit Breaker program was in 1997.
So this is one year after introduction.
It's been pretty steady in, in the first couple of years around that 1,200
amount. There was some waning years in the 2001 through 2005. The,
the reason for the step up back in 2006 and 2007 is because in 2005 the
Department reinstituted an educational program that went to various
community groups, senior groups. We spent a fair amount of time on our
calendar with staff to present the Circuit Breaker application to
community groups, senior groups, even to this day.
For the last two years, and including the amounts that we have thus far for
2000 and ... in, in the current Fiscal Year 2008 - 2009, we're seeing the
number of applications filed, is the first bar the lighter blue, and the actual
amount of credit that was actually issued is the darker blue. So that in
2006 - '07 we see about 1,315 applications received; where 1,142 were
actually granted. And then similarly in, in '07 - '08 it was 1,200
applications received and 1,123 granted. And as of this date, the
application deadline is still open so we don't have a full count yet but as of
this date we have already received 1,187 applications.
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And I've noted some, notable on the times so that in '06 - '07 represented
the time, that was the year that the Council raised the homeowner
exemption from 300,000. Council had raised the homeowner's exemption
the previous year to 200,000. And then in 2007 - 2008, this current year,
actually, the Circuit Breaker threshold was lowered from 3 percent to
2.5 percent. In terms of what the dollar value for these credit meant to the
County, in 2006 - '07 I had represented an amount of credit loss revenue of
about 1.1 million, and then in the current fiscal year it's actually about the
same 1,158,000.
Okay. Now this part will be the presentation that's actually given to the
community and senior groups or organizations upon request. Again, it's
not, we don't do this presentation via PowerPoint so this might be more
involved than it normally is. This is the Circuit Breaker application. This
is the full application. You notice it's only a single page. The actual
amount that you actually need to calculate is only represented in the
sections 1, 2, and 3. And actually it's only in Section 3 really. So it's near
the, just the top of the middle part. If you can calculate tip at a restaurant
you should be able to calculate your Circuit Breaker Credit.
The next three slides are the instructions that accompany the application
form. The instructions are three pages. The form is only one page. The
instructions three pages but it's, we spent a lot of time with examples and
now we have pictures in it. So, it's far more simplified and obvious in
terms of how to fill out the form. We also include a checklist on the
Circuit Breaker application, a checklist of two items to submit with your
actual application.
And now how to complete the form and how to apply. In Section 1 it'll
ask you to check to make sure that you have a homeowner's exemption.
You can check it by looking at your, if you don't know if you have a
homeowner's exemption or you can check it on your property assessment
that's sent out to you each year. You must have a homeowner's exemption
in order to continue. And the next thing is to look at your 1040 or what
you submitted to the Federal Government as your income tax return. This
is a copy of someone's tax return. And the number that you're going to be
most interested in is your adjusted gross income. And on this form the
1040, which is the standard form, it's the very last line on the first page,
Line 37.

- 18 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
October 29, 2007

So, Section 2 you just need to input whatever that number was on Line 37
or your AGI as specified on your tax form. You just need to input it on
line 1. The next thing is to multiply this number by 2.5 percent. And
here's the math to figure out what 2.5 percent is of your adjusted gross
income on this example. The next thing is to input the real property tax
assessed in Fiscal Year '07 - '08. This was the tax bill that you just got.
There's a, what your tax bill looks like. And if we go back to the example
that's provided on the instructions it tells you the, it draws a picture for
you, it cannot be clearer than that, of where to look for the number and
where to put it in. So, there's the number on the tax bill.
The next thing is to subtract Line 2 from Line 3. So, you just move the
number from Line 2 down to Line 3 and you do the math and you input
the math on Line 5. And here's that question if Line 4 is less than Line 3
you get a credit.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Greater.
MR. YOUNG: Ifline ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Greater than four.
MR. YOUNG: Oh, if, if Line 4 is greater than Line 3, sorry that's a typo, if
Line 4 is greater than Line 3, no I'm sorry. I am correct. If Line 4 is less
than Line 3 you get a credit. If Line 4 is greater than line 3 you do not
qualify. Let me say that again. If Line 4 is less than Line 3 you get a
credit. If Line 4 is greater than Line 3 you do not qualify. And it's that
simple.
Now, you can fill out the rest of the form, which is your name, address,
your Tax Map Key number, et cetera. That information is available on
your tax bill or you can get it via your assessment notice or you can even
call the Real Property Tax Division. Here's their number 270-7697 or if
you have computer access you can even visit www.mauipropertytax.com.
which is a, which is a link on the County website. And you just need to
submit the form to Real Property Tax Division. You can do so via mail,
the address is on the form or you can drop it off at the Maui Mall Service
Center.
Here's some reminders that I mentioned before. The Circuit Breaker
credit must be applied for each year and the reason that it must be applied
for each year is because your adjusted gross income will likely change
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from year to year as well as your tax bill will likely change from year to
year. The application must be submitted by December 31 8t of each year
and this is a date that's specified in the Maui County Code along with the
rest of the administration for the Circuit Breaker at 3.48.780. And again
it's only valid on properties with established homeowner exemption.
And that concludes the presentation for the Circuit Breaker credit,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Young. At this time, the Chair will call
for a short recess to raise up this screen and then we'll have Mr. Young as
well as his staff people answer some questions if Members have any
questions to ask the Department. This meeting is in recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

2:23 p.m.
2:25 p.m.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
... (gavel). . .
Thank you Mr. Young for that
presentation on Circuit Breaker Tax Credit. Hopefully, the viewing
audience got firsthand information from the Director here in regards to
how to apply for a Circuit Breaker Tax Credit. Members, again, you
know, we do have Mr. Young and his staff people here this afternoon. I
know Members had some questions. At this time, I'd like to call on
Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Again, now
that, Mr. Young, you've given us that explanation which is a little different
than Mr. Fisher had shown us. Can you explain to me why I'm confused a
little right now? Because you said it's very simple and I can understand
that but this one says current fiscal year, your real property tax for current
fiscal year. And Mr. Fisher's one said - what did Tony's one say? - Tony,
where did yours one go? Hang on. I somehow misplaced it on my papers.
I apologize. Try bring, Scott. Thank you. And when I read Mr. Fisher's
paper, subject to, here it says real property tax for current fiscal year.
Difference is one is underlined one is not. Okay. And then the previous
one said current fiscal year not underlined again. So, why would someone
have a difficult time understanding that, Mr. Young? It's not a trick
question I promise you.
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Victorino, I contend that the Circuit Breaker application form
which has been used in this current state for a number of years, I don't
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know if it goes back to the implementation date of the program back in
1997.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: The, the form has been essentially the same.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Then I go to your Real Property tax
bill. One says a total of $60 and that was from the year 2006 - 2007. And
he has it circled here. Why doesn't it say like you've just shown here in
the example where like in Mr. ... in this case, and I won't mention, was
669.25, $669.25 but at the very bottom it says total of $60 . Now, I see the
credits. I agree there's credits. But when I look at your example, I see
448.50. I see 448.50 but the total says $897.00 where this one shows $60.
MR. YOUNG: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Why the difference?
MR. YOUNG: Yeah. The layout for the bill has been revised for the current tax
year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that was problem in the beginning was
the layout of the bill. Is that what you're telling me?
MR. YOUNG: I'm not telling you that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. YOUNG: That's what Mr. Fisher them are telling you. I am not telling you
that. I am telling you that the bill has, as it was laid, laid out-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: --has been revised for the current year so it is consistent. The
problem with, I, that I could foresee is that in the previous years the layout
for that bottom line represented the total before penalties and interests.
Now, the layout of the bill totals the amounts from the above. So, it
doesn't, in the previous example it does not take into account if there were
say anything in the credit line which is the, let's say this is the amount for
the Circuit Breaker, it doesn't take that into account to reflect what is the
subtotal. So, in terms of the administration on how to apply for the Circuit
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Breaker Credit it would have been in the ... with this example that shows
60. It would have been to sum up the amount that you got pre-credit. And
that's the, on Line 3 that line that says enter the amount of real property
tax for the current fiscal year subject to prior year adjustments. And that's
an, that's the vague reference to the prior to credits essentially.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, as a simple person reading this and
reading the, the changes that you did institute, I can understand why
Mr. Fisher would be confused. Don't you? Wouldn't you understand why
he would be confused? When you look at the total it says $60 and that's
what it says your current fiscal year tax. So, again, you know you may be,
and, you know, maybe I'm not sharp enough to catch that but I think I'd
pick up that figure. Now with this new form, revised form, corrected
form, whatever form you want to make, make it out to be, yeah, now I see
it's $897. I know exactly.
You know again we've got to make things simple enough for our, our
people to understand because if I would have picked this up I would have
answered the same way. And maybe I'm not a real smart guy. Maybe I'm
not quick enough to pick up on these things. But then again there's a lot of
people out here that can't and they're pretty sharp people. So, again, I go
back to the question. Now that you see this, and this is a different
question but fall in the same line of thought, is there a possibility that
these people who were incorrectly led with a different assumption, not to
say that we, we made a mistake. Let's, let's put the cards on the table. We
made a mistake on how we, we showed this thing and where we wanted
people to take the number from. Is there any way we can correct that to
give them credits from two years ago or is that an impossibility?
MR. YOUNG: I would say that given the direction of the Maui County Code
which says that the number, the application must be submitted by
December 31 S\ this issue has passed its rightness in that you're talking
about a tax year that's already begun.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh. Okay. I guess I'm really sorry to
see that because I, I, I really feel when you make a mistake somehow you
should own up to the mistake. And whether it was intentional, and I don't
think it was, just reading this now I see the two differences. I can see why
they would be confused. And I would be confused. Now, I've never
qualified for the Circuit Breaker unfortunately so I've never gone that but
someday when I, if I ever get to that point I hope we keep it so that they
understand what it should be and not something that they shouldn't.
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Because again when you say total tax bill I would read $60. I'm sorry I
would read $60. I understand why they, they were led in that direction.
Okay. And too bad we cannot and I don't know if that's something we can
discuss later, Mr. Chair, but I'll yield to my colleagues. Thank you,
Mr. Young.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I appreciate it.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Thank you, Chair.
Good afternoon,
Mr. Young. So, dovetailing off of what Mr. Victorino was saying in terms
of if somebody has a disagreement with the Circuit Breaker process and
the application form is it, you know, from year's past, is it something that
they could I guess bring forward, forward to the Real Property Tax
Review Board? I mean is there, is that the, the current process that they
have to consider?
MR. YOUNG: It is, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So, very simply you have a problem
with or a disagreement with the fact that you don't qualify easily just go to
the Board. And how often does the Board meet?
MR. YOUNG: Weekly? Oh, once a month.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Once a month. Okay. And is it difficult to get
on their agenda in a somewhat timely fashion or they just, they would just
go through you or is there a contact person to get on to the agenda for the
Real Property Tax Review Board?
MR. YOUNG: The Board's appeal forms are available online. You can get one
from the Real Property Tax Division. Although the Division provides
administrative support to the Board, they're independent of the
Department.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So, for those who are not computer
literate they just go down to your Department at Maui Mall to get an
appeal form?
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MR. YOUNG: Correct. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And try to get an appointment before the
Board. Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you,
Director Young, for the presentation. I just wanted to ask a few questions
and you may have given the answers during your presentation. But again,
you know, from 2000 to 2004 there were that waning years in the chart.
And what, did you say why, what caused that? I, I wanted to know what,
what brought that about.
MR. YOUNG: Well, I wasn't around back in 2000 and 2004, but I suspect that
one of the reasons could have been that from '97 to '99 that's when the
Circuit Breaker program was still kind of fresh because it was just
implemented. But I don't know how much public information campaigns
there was or educational campaign there was in that 2000 - 2004 or to
what extent they were. So that could have been one of the reasons why it
kind of waned a little bit.
But starting in 2005, we started stepping up again the process of going out
to the community. So, I'd like to think that that is one of the reasons that
you kind of get a bump up in the numbers. Some of the other things
though, you know, you, if you look at economically you've got to
remember that 2000 - 2004 was that period where you're just coming out
of the, you know, housing values were, were kind of just kind of coming
out of that trough. So there could be some affect there.
In 2003 to 2007 that's when the real rampant increase in housing values so
it could also mean that more people sought out the Circuit Breaker
program or maybe more of 'em qualified because of that as a result. So,
yeah, one of the reasons, the only reason that I mentioned was perhaps the
educational efforts.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Now, is it my understanding that the
Circuit Breaker is unique to Maui County throughout Hawaii?
MR. YOUNG: No, it's not.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
MR. YOUNG: The City also has a Circuit Breaker program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: City and County of Honolulu?
MR. YOUNG: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. YOUNG: It's not as, Maui has the most generous Circuit Breaker Program
because the City's one is not, although it's based on, on your income it's
not an unlimited credit like of which Maui gives. You know Maui's one is
anything above the 2.5 up to the limit of your tax bill you get that as a
form of a credit even if your tax bill is a million dollars and your AGI is
25,000 you get that whole amount in the credit. The City and County it's a
very, it's a fixed amount. It's $450 or if you make over 50,000 you don't
even get it but it's a fixed dollar amount.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So it has a maximum.
MR. YOUNG: It has a maximum. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And do we have Circuit Breakers or
the equivalent of Circuit Breakers in other jurisdictions outside of Hawaii
that you know of?
MR. YOUNG: I'm not aware of any and Mr. Teruya, Ms. Fernandez are not
aware of any other jurisdictions that have Circuit Breakers.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And finally, is there any way which I'm
thinking maybe not to find out how many people that would qualify for
Circuit Breakers are not filing for Circuit Breakers because they just don't
know about it or they don't want to go through the process of doing it? Is
that a possibility or that's beyond trying to figure that out because we just
don't know what people taxes are as far as when they do a tax return?
MR. YOUNG: Yeah, we, we wouldn't know because the Circuit Breaker
Program is a proactive benefits program on the part of the taxpayer. So, if
you want the credit you need to apply.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
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MR. YOUNG: So, you know, I'm sure there are people out there that they could
qualify because of their AGI relative to their, to their tax but they either
choose not to apply or they don't know to apply that's, and the latter is the
reason why we spend so much time on the educational efforts.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And in that regard on the educational efforts
on the part of the Department of Finance you ... you plan to continue to
do that on a regular basis as far as going out and educating especially the
senior population?
MR. YOUNG: Continue it on a regular basis. We, we do it starting in September
because it start, the Circuit Breaker Program starts in August so we, we do
it in September. We do it as part of the Mayor's annual budget to, to
every, every community. We also do it to a number of senior groups, a
couple of MEO groups, and any other community organizations that
request. So there's some religiously affiliated community groups that we,
we also do the presentation for.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Do you, have you considered or have you
done any advertisement in the local media, print media as far as having
this opportunity for groups to contact the County Department of Finance
to request a presentation or a educational meeting on Circuit Breakers?
MR. YOUNG: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No. Have you considered that? No? In, in
trying to get more information out regarding the potential for them to learn
more about it?
MR. YOUNG: Not really.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay. Thank you, Director Young.
Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. I'd just like to mention
that ever since coming into the, the Council, Mr. Young and his staff has
religiously gone out every year to the senior programs here in Maui
County as Mr. Young had noted to educate our senior members in regards
to taking advantage of the Circuit Breaker. And today's presentation I
think that's the first ever that was presented through Akaku. So, I'd like to
thank the Director for that.
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I got a question for Corporation Counsel in regards to anybody from the
public filing in late, in other words for an appeal. In this case here, you
know, this thing was 2006, through the ordinance it says that you, you
need to appeal by a certain period of time, in this case here how would you
view this case? Is it too late because of the ordinance? Corporation
Counsel.
MS. HEELY: Mahalo, Chair. Given the fact that the deadline is really clear in
the Maui County Code, December ... (change of tape 1B - 2:41 p.m.) ...
as well as the reasoning that Director Young gave and that the process
starts basically in August, through that time it basically puts the burden on
the taxpayer to do their due diligence, their homework in submitting their
claim. So, and there is case law out there that says the duty to tax, there's
a duty to tax and that exemptions or benefits or credits are to be strictly
construed against the taxpayer. So, yes, in this case I would, it would
suffice to say that he did miss the deadline to file for the credit.
And the Code does allow the Board of Review to hear any and all disputes
of any taxpayer so that's another avenue that they could have gone if they
had a question regarding receiving or not receiving the Circuit Breaker
Tax Credit.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MS. HEELY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This is a hard
one for me because I'm all about fairness. I think we need to be fair and
equitable in all dealings with the public in regard to the government. And
when you look at these two real property tax bills it's very clear to me that
the '06 - '07 bill is very misleading in the total amount of $60. And, and if
it wasn't misleading then why in the '07 - '08 bill do you have the total tax
for the year listed under total?
Members, if you look at the bills side by side under tax for the '06 - '07 bill
it shows $669.25 twice for each payment period in the, in the '06 - '07 tax
bill, and then next to it it has the credits from the previous tax year. You
deduct those credits out and you get $30 for each year due and that gives
you the total below of $60, which is what they reflect. But if you look at
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the '07 bill and you look at the total tax due in, in the tax column for each
payment period $448.50, $448.50 and those two tax credits add up to
$897.00, which is what they show as the total not deducting the credits
like they did in '06.
So, you've definitely changed the way you are reflecting this on the bill.
And, you know, I think it's fair to, to understand why people would have
miscalculated what their actual tax amount was on the '06 - '07 bill. And
so when you get these Circuit Breaker Tax Credit applications doesn't
anybody check them for accuracy?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Department?
MS. FERNANDEZ: In the Collection Section we review every application that is
received by our office. So, we tell the public whether or not you qualify
or not please put one in so that we can review the application and make
sure that the calculations are correct. Everyone of the applications are
reviewed for the calculations.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, then why wasn't this error correct,
caught?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: It wasn't submitted.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If the actual tax amount was not $60 but
$1,338 then why wasn't ...
MS. FERNANDEZ: He did not submit his application.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They didn't file? I thought the whole issue
here was the, the application or the tax form was misleading. I'm looking
at a, an application. Is this a dummy application that we have in our
binder?
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
No, that's an application that Mr. Fisher and
Mr. Tavares submitted-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, well ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --to this body.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. And so I don't know why you're
saymg ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The explanation ...
MR. YOUNG: It's an application that was not submitted.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah, it wasn't submitted.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
think they qualified.

It wasn't submitted because they didn't

MS. FERNANDEZ: Yes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Exactly.
MR. YOUNG: Right.
MS. FERNANDEZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But that's my point-MS. FERNANDEZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --is that, oh, so you couldn't have checked
it because they never sent it in.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes, yes, they never saw it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There you go.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know it just seems like we're looking
at, you know, $1,300 for one person who's retired that's a lot of money.
And, and how many times you multiply that. And I really do think that
the form, and I'm not saying that it was an intentional in anyway, I just
think it was very misleading. I would have done, I would have filled it out
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the same way. You know unless you're really .. .um . .. you know it just
says tax total.
And, you know, Mr. Young, I can see your point of view if somebody
would have taken the time to run the totals themselves. Get out a
calculator or hand add and look at these credits and say, oh, well those
credits are being deducted from, my credits from last year are being
deducted in this year's tax and that's why it says 60 down here but really
my tax is $1,338. You know that takes a little bit ofl guess calculation
and, and, and a little bit of thinking through the way the form is written or
the tax bill is written. And, you know, in all fairness you must think the
same or you wouldn't have changed it in the '07 - '08 bill to not reflect the
tax credit but the total tax.
So, you know, here we are now. That's neither here nor there. It's too late
for them to do an appeal. I'm just wondering, Ms. Corporation Counsel, is
there any way the Council can cure this? Is there anything we can do to
cure this? Because you know we know Mr. Fisher did not send in his
application because he didn't qualify but how many people are like him
who didn't send in because they didn't think they qualified either and I
guess there's no way for us to actually know that. But it seems to me that
there's got to be someway in all fairness that we can cure this for our
retirees.
And I mean come on, Members, excuse me, look at this. How many
properties do we have, Mister, Mr. Young? We have 66,000 TMKs and
probably not all of them have real property on them I mean, you know,
buildings. So, you know, we're only looking at 1,100 Circuit Breaker
applications. Out of all those properties only 11 ... 1,100 people even get
the Circuit Breaker. So, I don't know that ...
MR. YOUNG: Well, there's only, to be clear, it's, that may seem like a small
percentage but you're talking about, it only applies to the homeowners'
classification.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. YOUNG: And there's about 22 to 24,000 properties in the homeowners'
classification.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, 22 to 24 thousand. So even still this
is less than 10 percent. That's like 5 percent or something. And, you
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know, in all fairness many of 'em would never qualify because of their
adjusted gross but the ones who do qualify are the ones that we're trying to
So, I'm asking
help and those are the elderly on fixed income.
Corporation Counsel if there's any other way that the Council can go about
curing this on behalf of these elderly retired people on fixed income.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MS. HEELY: The Council can via ordinance attempt to cure this. And given the
explanation in the slideshow of the Department is, I believe that the
concerns were addressed in the fixing of the, making the forms clearer-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MS. HEEL Y: --and with the presentations. As you guys are aware the duty on
the Council and Department is the power to tax. Not the power to educate,
not the power to fill out the forms for them but there is discussion of
rollback. And I, I briefly read Mr. Fisher and Mr. Tavares' ... proposed
ordinance and I did some brief research on rollback applications and
there's some case law that says rollback application have been invalidated
and not to be found valid because of Council's authority under the
Constitution to tax every year so.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you're kind of going into another
subject now. So, could we just kind of, you were saying that the Council
could cure this by ordinance so what would that look like or sound like if
we wanted to correct? If we wanted to give, give back these credits that
were missed because they misread the application or they misread the tax
bill and, you know, they would have otherwise received a tax credit that
they now had to pay, is there any way we can do that specifically for this
situation?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MS. HEELY: I don't have a specific answer for you other than the suggestion of
what you're governed by Charter and allowed to do in creation of
amendments or, and ordinances. The proposed ordinance within the
submission of Budget Item 58 is questionable as it orders the Department
of Finance to do certain things. There is concerns or issues of retroactivity
and whether or not it can be retroactive to those that had a
misunderstanding of their submission of their Circuit Breaker application.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You're talking about the ordinance that was
submitted specifically on the Circuit Breaker alleged deficiency. So, you
have problems with that but you're saying that there's a possibility the
Council could adopt an ordinance that would provide relief for those
people who felt they didn't qualify because they misread the tax form.
Which I'm assuming, Mr. Chairman, would be, you know, not a whole lot
of people and not a whole lot of money. And I would think that the
Council, the County could afford it when we're talking, you know, how
much are we talking here less than 20,000?
And there would have to be a way for them to prove that they, you know,
didn't understand the, the way the tax form read and decided therefore that
they didn't qualify. But I, I, I think it's worth exploring. And this, this
ordinance has been proposed may not suit the situation or fit the bill for
whatever reasons noted by Corporation Counsel but I'm just hoping that
there's a way that we can deal with this, Mr. Chairman. And, and I don't
know off the top of my head what it would be but it seems like we can
write an ordinance for just about anything.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: That's true. Thank you, Member Anderson. Member
Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Chair. I'm feeling very much like
Member Anderson that I would like to make a wrong right. And, you
know, by revising the form I think we pretty much have agreed that it
needed to be fixed and we did what we needed to do and that's very
laudable and that's wonderful. But if I was one of the people that
... misunderstood the previous form and I didn't get my credit because of
it then I certainly would not be happy and I'd be trying to figure out, you
know, how I could get my credit.
And I would really like our legal department and our Finance Department
to try to figure out a way for us to do this. Like Member Anderson says
we're very creative and I think if there's a will there's a way we'll find it.
But we ought to try to make a wrong right.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, at this time, we'll take our
midday break. We'll return back to the Chambers at five after 3: 00. This
meeting is in recess .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

2:55 p.m.
3:12 p.m.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel). .. Thank you, Members, for that recess.
The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now reconvened.
Members, that was a healthy discussion for BF-58. The Chair would like
to entertain this question to the Members in regards to the Circuit Breaker
Tax Credit. You know we have two gentlemen over here that qualified
but submitted or didn't submit their tax credit, Circuit Breaker Tax Credit
forms on a timely basis. If, the question that I have and, and, you know,
for you is who, who qualifies? Because no application was filed one of
the things that the Board of Review, Tax Board of Review, you know,
how would they know who has filed or who has not when people who
qualify appeals? So that's a question for you. The other thing is how
many years do we go back because there's some budget implications in
regards to this year? How much money will be appropriated Fiscal Year
2008? Do we have to make a budget amendment? And the item in
regards to, you know, how do we process this applications, does the
Department have enough manpower to do it?
So, Members, recommendations or, or, or comments in regards to those
questions.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --just one quick question I may have missed it in
the presentation. When did the Circuit Breaker come into effect?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Department?
MR. YOUNG: That would be 1997, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, essentially, nine years that possibly could be
involved.
MR. YOUNG: Eleven, it's 11 tax years including the current year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member
Medeiros followed by Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, I think my sentiments are quite like
the other Members in that in honesty we certainly want to make right what
the, some people saying that they were misled by the form and so forth.
But my question is I think what you mentioned is how do we determine
who would come forth now or are we just addressing the two individuals
that, you know, authored the proposed ordinance? How do we determine
who actually didn't file for the reasons given or who are the people that
weren't going to file anyway or were late to file but would allow them to
come forward now? And that would be my, you know, question how do
we determine that?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. If you're asking me I'm, I'm going to refer
this question to the Department. You, you know for me it's, it's just, I
don't know, a number that you pick from the air.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair, one more question.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, I, yeah, if the Department can give
some comments on that I think it would help, you know, us understand
the, the scope of what we looking at by doing this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Department, if you could?
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Chair, that would be similar to the question Mr. Medeiros
asked before the break which is how do we know how many people could
qualify for the Circuit Breaker but for whatever reasons whether they
chose to or didn't not apply for the, for the credit program. There is no
way to know, Mr. Chair, and the Department doesn't have any
mechanisms that's in the current process to know how many people could
have qualified or did qualify but did not apply for the credit program.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Anderson.

Thank you.

Member Baisa followed by Member

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just one more quick question. How long did we
use this form that allegedly was involved that was corrected?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Department?
MR. YOUNG: The form in its current state has been effectively not changed
during my duration and according to Ms. Fernandez it's been in place
since the program was implemented in 1997.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. I was hoping that it was something
we devised more recently. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You know I
would be in favor of just going back to the last tax year. No need to go
back 10 or 11 years. We have no way of knowing and, and, you know,
taxpayers probably have no way of knowing if they misread the tax form
or not. But now that it's been brought to light and we can all see how it
was easily misinterpreted and given the fact that the Department has
changed it so that it's clearer, I think it's, you know, in good faith
reasonable to go back one tax year since it's now been brought to our
attention.
And I think that we could do a simple notice in the paper, you know, just
like we've got in front of us the comparison of these two different tax bills
with an explanation if, a simple explanation explaining what happened.
And, you know, if anyone believes that they did not file for a Circuit
Breaker because they filled out the application incorrectly and felt that
they didn't qualify that they now have an opportunity within 60 days or
something like that to refile and ... um. .. receive redress. And, you
know, it's the best we can do. It's just a good faith effort.
And I mean I can't see this being a huge tax implication when, I mean I
could be wrong but if it's twenty to thirty thousand dollars that we're
talking about I mean that's only a guess on my part but, you know, I would
venture to guess that given the fact that we only have somewhere in the
neighborhood of 1,100 people who have received Circuit Breaker, Circuit
Breaker credits that that would be a fair estimation. Again, you know, it's
not to blame anybody or find fault with anybody. It's just to say, you
know, it's, it's a reasonable mistake.
And I'm very happy to see that they've corrected it on the, on the current
form but to just ignore the fact that people who should have gotten a tax
credit didn't get it because they misread the form because the form wasn't
clear. And to just say, you know, sorry I don't think is good enough. I
think we should make a good faith effort to redress the wrong in some
manner and, you know, going back one year and putting in a notice in the
paper. And certainly these, these gentlemen from COMET I'm sure they'll
get the word out and we're talking about for the most part elderly people
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who are on fixed incomes. Because otherwise you're not even going to
qualify because your adjusted gross is going to kick you out of the whole
program.
So that's a very narrow segment of our population that are paying tax, real
property taxes. And I would assume that they would be easy to get in
touch with through Kaunoa Senior Services, through AARP, through a
notice in the paper. And if we put a notice in the paper then that gives us I
would think gives the County ... um . .. legal due notice. In other words, a
notice in the paper, we do that for everything else that has to be publicly
notified, just a notice in the paper should be sufficient for us to say that we
have given due notice. And give people 60 days and then we'll know.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member
Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know I'm
sort of torn with this. I, I can totally sympathize with the needs of those
who would like I guess a process that would be improved and so they're
not put into a difficult situation. But at the same time I think we need to
be wary of what an action could cause in terms of, you know, while trying
to solve one problem could it possibly cause a different set of problems.
And, you know, I don't know what your intention is here today, Mr. Chair,
but I know you brought about a lot of issues that I, I would tend to assume
that you maybe not quite be certain about, you know.
And so, it just cause in my own mind some type of uncertainty as well.
You know like I'd never thought of some of things that you were saying.
So, it's, it's for me it's brought about two important issues is first how to
improve the process. Is, has there been enough improvement already
made or do we need to consider something else? And it, another thing that
I think what, I think we not only here on, on the Council but just everyone
in the public is you need to ask questions if you're not sure about
something or if there's something that seems, I don't want to use the word
suspect, it's incumbent upon every citizen to ask questions, call the
Department.
So, there's a little bit of shared responsibility here on government as well
as the citizens. So, if you're not quite clear and if you really want this
benefit and if at first it seems you may not qualify it doesn't hurt to ask.
So, call the Department and who knows you may end up qualifying even
though at first you thought you may not have. So, you know it's
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somewhat of a dilemma, Mr. Chair, and I think maybe we should take
time out and go maybe research this a little bit more. In our binders, I
don't think there's been a written opinion from Corp. Counselor the
Department. So, in my opinion to take an action here today with, without
getting some of these issues answered I don't believe it's the right thing to
do at this point.
Is this the first time we've addressed this Issue for this term,
Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: This is the first time we've addressed-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: This particular concern right-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --this issue. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --that's been brought up by, by Mr. Tavares and
Mr., and, and Mr. Fisher. So, I would think maybe if we could defer and
then get some more I guess information from the Department and Corp.
Counsel and then at a future meeting then we can possibly take some
action if it's appropriate.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Thank you, Mr. Molina.
comments? Member Victorino.

Members, any more

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. Mr. Chair, thank you. I, I think it's
very apparent our sentiment is with the system and the inaccuracies of the
system. And I would concur with my, with Member Anderson's thought
that if we go back one year, and we've got to set a parameter on timeline
because you just can't go back forever. And just you know people have
died, properties have changed hands so it just becomes a virtual
impossibility. But I think by going back one year it makes it very, very
possible, very realistic, you know, it wouldn't take up that much time.
And what I heard today and I think, Ms. Fernandez, I thank you for that
comment and maybe what I would say to public is when in doubt do the
forms, send it in, and see what happens. Because there I think is where the
problem may stem is because it says right here do not continue. It says
right there, if you, if line 4 is greater than line 3, which is not the way you
said it, Mr. Young, but that's okay but it says right there if line 4 is greater
than line 3 you do not qualify do not continue. Boom.
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So, if you made a mistake or if you think you don't qualify you don't,
automatically won't send it in. And maybe there will be people that
Ms. Fernandez could help and say or the Department would say, oh, wait a
minute you did thing wrong this is the right way and yes you qualify. So,
with that said and done you've made the corrections. I appreciate that.
Thank you very much. But I think Mr. Chair, I would like some direction
from you and, and, and the Department and Corp. Counsel in how we can
form a, I think we need to put an ordinance together to say, hey, for 2006
because of this ambiguous language and because of the methodology that
we used to calculate and show what your tax based or your total tax due
and which many people took. And I'm just paraphrasing right now and
they need to put it in legal words then this mistake was concurred and so
many people or some people did not take advantage of something that was
really justifiably due to them.
And again these will be our seniors, fixed income. They're not the fat cats.
These are not millionaires living up in, in the mega-mansions. These are
the everyday people that need the help most, most importantly. So, if
somehow, Mr. Chair, we can go work something out I'd support it
wholeheartedly.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. The Chair is intending to
defer this item. You know like Corporation Counsel had noted, you know,
the Council has the prerogative to change the ordinance if we need to.
And I think after hearing all of your comments, the Chair and our Legal
Analyst as well as our Legislative Analyst will work together to come up
with an ordinance that hopefully can resolve an issue like this for the tax
year 2006 - 2007. The question that I have for the Department though if
we did that how would that affect your resources?
MR. YOUNG: Well, Mr. Chair, it would depend on the nature and the
requirements of the proposed ordinance. Because as I said there's no way
to tell how many people would likely qualify under the current parameters
that are being discussed today. So that's kind of an unknown.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Thank you.
Again, I'd just like to thank the
Department, you know, after 11 years you corrected the form to make it
more clearer.
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Chair, could, could I just clarify.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Young.
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MR. YOUNG: Nothing on the form has been changed. The, we're talking about
a change to the tax bill ... (change of tape 2A - 3:28 p.m.) ... changed
because of the Circuit Breaker or the issues related to the Circuit Breaker.
It might be that the bill is now maybe more clearer for those people who
did not understand how to fill out the Circuit Breaker application before
but it was not changed to facilitate the Circuit Breaker application.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. I just was comparing the, well, the
property, real property tax bill, the one that you presented and the one that
was presented by COMET. You know the difference that I see is the
totals, the bottomline actually is one area and then there's none on the
other one. So that's when I say, you know, the new bill is more readable.
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to
comment, you know, in that there is no way to tell how many people
would reapply if they were given that opportunity. If you look at the
'07 - '08 bill it's very clear in my mind now what the total tax is and the
figure that would be applied on the application. And if you look at the
number of people who applied in the '07 - '08 tax year and in the '08 - '09
tax year it, you know, is actually less than the number of people that
applied in the '06 - '07 tax year. So, I don't think that there would be, you
know, a dearth of new applications coming in because the new tax bill is
very clear. And those people who would have qualified in '07 - '08 I don't
think there's any confusion in how to fill out the form with the right
numbers given the change made on the tax bill.
So, I feel confident that we would have, you know, probably very few
people applying for redress for the '06 - '07 tax year. And I just wanted to
add that because I know it's, you know, it's disconcerting for the
Department to have to deal with this. And, you know, anytime especially
if you're a bean counter to deal with, you know, I see that as a, I don't
know, a standard moniker for people who are like CP As and stuff. I don't
mean it to be derogatory in any way. But if you deal with finances it's
always disconcerting to have to deal with an unknown. But I just think the
unknown here is not a big, a big number and given what we already see
here as far as applications I think that would support that.
So, I appreciate your effort, Mr. Chair, to see if there's something we can
do to correct this. And even if it's a handful of people, you know, at least
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it's a good faith effort to give them an opportunity to reapply. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more comments? Member
Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chair. Yeah, I think Member
Anderson, you know, makes a good point that it probably won't be a great
number of people but I think I would support your recommendation for
deferral so more research can be done. And I agree with Member Molina
about his comments. And my concern would be that say we do go ahead
with this ordinance and we put a time or well, a year that it will cover in
the tax bill. Will it set a precedent for people to come for other years and
say we'd like to be redressed on this also? Because this form was in its
present form for ten years and this is the first time I am understanding that
this has been brought up. So what happened for ten years that people did
this form?
And so my concern would be that if we make special legislation to cover
like a one year period say like Member Anderson is saying that would set
a precedent for anybody else to come back and say well what about 2000,
you know we didn't file because we thought we didn't qualify? So, I
think by your deferral it will give us an opportunity to do more research on
this so that we can be clearer what the ramifications may be if we do go
through with legislation. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, any more
comment? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I am feeling very comfortable with having a little
bit more research done on this because I think there are some legal
questions that we might want to be advised on. However, I did want to
comment on the fact that, you know, the public has a responsibility to find
out. You know in my previous life I did many programs with seniors and
I also took care of an aging mother and in-laws for many years who were
not really that able to-my mother may be better than my in-laws-to read
forms and to understand the vocabulary of forms like preceding year,
.. . {inaudible} . .. minimum. You know those kinds of things befuddle an
immigrant person who's elderly and they might look at this form and, and
really not, not understand it, not know what to do. And yes we have
opportunities at MEO or other places where seniors come but they don't
all do that and they may not understand and they're intimidated.
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And I think this is the reason why a lot of people don't file is because they
don't understand. Or if they start going through it and it looks like they
don't qualify they just stop but they don't question. So, you know, when
you're dealing with folks who are not well educated, who maybe speak
another language as a first language or whatever, and they don't have
children handy who are better educated and can help them or a resource I
think that's part of the issue. And that's one of the reasons why we may
not have seen a complaint done before.
You know today we have a new kind of senior citizen. They're better
educated then most of us are. Very articulate and have the time to delve
into things, and I think this is why we're seeing this now. But I agree I
think the deferral is good.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Members, any more
questions? Comments? If not, the Chair's recommendation is to defer this
item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.

ITEM NO. 53:

ACQUISITION-BASED TAX REFORM (e.c. No. 07-230)

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you Members, that was a pretty healthy
discussion. Members, the last item on the agenda this afternoon is BF-53,
Acquisition-Based Tax Reform. The Committee is in receipt of County
Communication No. 07-230 from Bill Tavares, Chairman, and Tony
Fisher, Vice-Chairman, Committee of More Equitable Taxation also
known as COMET, transmitting a draft bill relating to acquisition-based
tax reform. The major aspects of the ordinance as proposed by COMET
are as follows: (1) 4 percent per year maximum cap on all properties
where the ownership has not changed during the period January 181 to
December 31 81 of each year; (2) where ownership do change during the
period of January 181 to December 31 81 the property shall be assessed at the
sale price of the property effective of, on January 181 of the year following
the transaction; (3) the tax rate will set, the tax rate will still be set by the
... County Council; (4) transfer from parents to children or grandchildren
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will not result in reassessment; and (5) people over 55 will be able to
transfer the ownership of their principal residence to another residence up
to a maximum of $1 million and transfer their old tax assessment to their
new property.
At this time, the Chair is going to call up, forward both Mr. Fisher as well
as Mr. Tavares to come up. And as they're coming up, Mr. Young, do you
have any comments to add?
MR. YOUNG: Not at this time, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. FISHER: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Before you start, Mr. Fisher, I'd just like to introduce to
the viewing audience that on my left is Mr. Fisher and to my right is
Mr. Tavares. At this time, the Chair would like to have a representative
from COMET do a presentation to the body that's here this afternoon.
Mr. Fisher.
MR. FISHER: Is this on?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: It's on.
MR. FISHER: We're going to start this afternoon off by having Bill Tavares, the
Chairman of COMET give a little history and background, which brings
us up to this point and the submission of the document that you have in
there. 'Cause we have new Members on the County Council and people
that have not heard this before. Bill.
MR. TAV ARES: Thank you. I want to thank the Council for having us here.
And I am glad I'm here in person and, and not as the phantom of the
Council. This has taken 20 years and I hope this is the last year. I wanted
to give a very brief history of COMET's efforts to bring about a real
property tax reform, which began in 1988. There is one thing that is very
apparent and that is that the homeowner under the present tax system has
ended up paying a proportionately higher property tax than the person who
is flipping real estate. COMET had decided that we needed a mechanism
to put a cap on assessments placed on homeowners.
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COMET's persistent efforts have had a profound effect on the
homeowner's property taxes. Firstly, the Circuit Breaker has helped
between 5 to 10 percent of homeowners we think. Secondly, responding
to COMET's appeals various Councils have raised home exemptions in
the last few years from 70 to 110 to 200 to 300,000 the highest in the State
but, and that's a big but, long-term property owners are still being unfairly
treated as compared with the flippers.
About five years ago, a landmark event in COMET's history occurred.
COMET's executive committee asked Tony Fisher to join us and he has
joined us in carefully crafting an ordinance that included suggestions from
the members of COMET. And that ordinance addressed the homeowners
as well as all other property owners. COMET has struggled over the
years. And today as the Council has requested we will describe the latest
version of our proposed ordinance and will answer any questions. Tony
Fisher has worked with many people outside of COMET to bring about
the present ordinance. Tony, would you please continue this discussion?
MR. FISHER: Thank you, Bill. I'm going to be brief and go over this so that you
can hear it and then come back with questions as they may be germane.
The Chair went over some of the points that are very important and I'll just
go over these very briefly. The COMET proposal fundamentally has the
concept of saying that your assessment of your property tax that there are
two parts to taxes, the assessment and the tax rate. That the assessment on
an annual basis if you stay in your house will go up 4 percent or the CPI,
the one that you use for Social Security for us who are there, whichever is
less so that there is a cap.
So, the number one concept is there is a cap. Number two, reassessment is
not done in the manner that it is done today. It is only, a piece of property
is only reassessed when it changes hands. And so, and it happens at the
time not six months, a year. At the present time, our understanding from
the Finance Department is that it is about 18 months behind. Now, if you
go and add up all the amount of money there is flowing in and out of the
real estate business it is perfectly clear that there's a whole lot of money
that is not being reassessed properly. That's millions and millions of
dollars.
Our, our one example that we gave two years ago was that there was
approximately $20 million per year that is just gone forever because you'll
never catch up with it. There are two other relatively minor, but very
important to the people of the State of Hawaii and particularly to Maui,
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aspects to this particular ordinance. Number one is that we live in a State
and certainly in a County where people have a tendency to pass their
property on to their children or their grandchildren or in case maybe
multiple children. So, if you have an acquisition-based system then if you
live there for years and years and years and then you die or decide to move
somewhere else and you give it to your children, they then have this
enormous spike because they've been going up at 4 percent or less per
year.
And so, there is an, part of the ordinance is that you can pass it on to your
children or your grandchildren not your aunts, your uncles, the cousins or
people of that nature, only your children and your grandchildren and the
tax rate, I'm sorry, the tax cost does not change. And that's just, it's very
germane to I think the State of Hawaii more than anywhere else. The
second is that people in Maui particularly have a tendency to have a lot of
children. Bill had, what? Five?
MR. TAVARES: Five.
MR. FISHER: Therefore-and 18 grandchildren-therefore if you buy a big house
to bring up that many children and then you get to be, you know, your hair
gets this color, you may then say to yourself! don't want to live in that big
house anymore. I'm rattling around in it. I'd like to sell my big house and
move into a smaller house. Well, you're faced with the same problem
because theoretically when you buy the new place you got to pay at the
much higher rate because it's reassessed at this time of the sale. And
therefore the only way to resolve that is to say that you as a homeowner if
you have your principal property or that you live in and you move to
another one can take your old tax base is the better word for it along with
you. So, if your house is say worth a million dollars and it's only assessed
at $400,000 and you move in from a million dollars house to a million
dollar house you take your $400,000.
Now, does the County lose any money? Absolutely not because they sell
the old house, right, at the, the new price and so the County is, is perfectly
clear, free and clear of any problems in that. So, it's not a, these are two
very minor. Not a lot of properties every year would change hands but
they take care of the indigenous population of the County of Maui and
that's what we're really concerned about. There is one final little point in
here, which is that at present there is no requirement for a piece of
property that is to be a homeowner's property, and there's been some
discussion in previous meetings not with us but on other issues about the
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fact that the, the certificate that you must make out on when you sell your
house and it, the new person then says I am a homeowner. Unfortunately,
that thing doesn't get filed.
A lady called me up in, last year, yeah, year, last year, and she said I am
really up the creek because my property, because although I'm a
homeowner, I bought it in December and it didn't get registered until
January. And like the discussion we were having earlier they got arbitrary
lines in the sand and the end result is that since it's now January that they
actually got it filed, they had to live 12 months as a renter kind of thing
with two and half times the amount of money to pay in taxes.
So, one of the things we put in here was that when a piece of property sells
from a homeowner's standpoint you must make out a piece of paper. It
must go in and that fixes the date on which this happens. Whether they
get around to counting it in January or February or March is immaterial.
So, the homeowner is protected against the slowness of the present
system. The most important aspect I think of this entire idea is that again
there are two parts, there are two parts to taxes, the assessment and the tax
rate. We have absolutely and positively left the setting of tax rates to you
the County Council Members and not tried to take that away.
Somebody recently said to me my God if something terrible happened we
would all be up the creek. No. The, the, the least you have to do is to
increase the tax rate by some significant amount but that's why they pay
you the big bucks so you have to make those kind of hard decisions. Not
that big-okay, never mind. Anyway, one of the things that you asked us to
do very specifically-yeah, let me put this down for a second-was to take
our five page ordinance which people were having a great deal of problem
in negotiating through and make it into something simpler. And so we got
a young man to, who happens to be an attorney, to sit down with us and to
go through it and we now have an ordinance which is one page in length
now.
When the legal beagles get through with it and everything it'll be
somewhat longer, but it certainly is not going to be anyway near as long.
All of the information that I have just described to you is contained on this
one piece of paper. And I'd like to read the, the, the first paragraph
because I think it really expresses. In order to preserve the lifestyle of our
rural island community and provide a more fair and equitable system of ad
valorem taxation, the real property tax ordinance is amended to limit the
annual increase in assessments when property is not transferred. Also,
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exceptions have been made to protect property tax assessments for
residents of Maui 55 and over to move to a different property and
exchanges among family members. That's a summary in one paragraph at
the top of this document of what this is all about.
The next thing that comes up and, you know, I get stopped and my, my
license plate number is Tony F and some people have figured out that,
that's, I'm that guy from COMET so they stop me in Costco and Kmart
and all that kind of thing and they say, oh, you're the guy. What happens
if and then they go and chatter at me for five minutes in the parking lot.
So, I'd like to take just a couple of minutes and cover the myths of what
we have proposed and to deal with them before, because I think a lot of
you probably have these questions in the back of your head.
One of the ones that was made here in this Chamber a year and a half ago
was it will cost more money. A man stood over there at that podium and
testified that it will cost a lot more money to do this and require an
enormous greater number of people. Now, I spent 45 years working in the
computer industry and there are very few people on this island who know
much, as much about the whole process of data processing as I do. Here's
the truth of the matter. At the present time every time a piece of property
is sold it goes into a mix of all the properties in that neighborhood and
they sit and they homogenize them. Is my favorite word for that. And
they figure it out and although you've lived in your house and how long
has your mother lived in her house? Not that long. For a long, long time
when this guy sells his house in her neighborhood her taxes go up, and
folks, and a lot.
I've had people, one lady called me up she said my taxes went from seven
to fourteen to thirty-two thousand in three years and she left the island.
And the reason she left the island was it just went out of sight. And it's
not fair. She didn't want to move. And it's not fair that her taxes go up
because you sell your house or you buy the house as the case may be.
Now, that's a very complicated process. Now, let me take, let me fill you
in on the way this thing works. January 18t comes around anybody's house
or property by the way, and I use the broadest words, we are talking about
all of the 66,000 properties, not just the homeowner's properties.
Anybody's property who didn't sell during that 12-month period get
jacked up either 4 percent or the CPI whichever is less.
And having been in the computer industry for years I will tell you that that
whole process of doing that is in minutes not the three-and-a-half months
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or two-and-a-half months that it takes now. It is very simple. It's all done
by computer and it's done. Now, there's a group, group of other houses
and properties that sold during the year but as they sell they are what?
Reappraised at whatever they sold for. There is no your house has to go
up because his sold. Quite the contrary. Yours goes up 4 percent and his
may go up 40 percent or 80 percent or whatever the number is. That too is
fair. The person that is flipping is the word that Bill used a few minutes
ago, should be paying differently than the, than the long-term resident. It's
upside down right now.
The long-term resident is being badly hurt by the flipping and that's just a
fact of life. And anybody that doesn't believe that. The second part of
this is the conversion. My God how can we ever get this conversion done
from the present system to the other? And I will tell you as a data
processing expert for a lot of years, the conversion effort is so simple that
anybody that tells you different doesn't know what he's talking about. It is
a very simple thing because you don't have to do all this other stuff. You
take all that code out of the system and throw it away and say it either
goes up the CPI or 4 percent or whatever you paid for it. There are no
exceptions.
The next one you always hear is, oh, my God what's going to happen is
that you're going to live next door to somebody who's paying a
considerably less tax than you. Big deal. There are a number of States in
the United States who have done this acquisition-based tax reform system
and let me tell you I lived in one of 'em before, during, and after the
conversion. My next door neighbor had lived there for 21 years before I
moved in. The man across the street moved in some five years after me.
We had three separate and distinct tax, tax bills although our houses were
approximately the same value. And you want to know something there
wasn't one nanosecond of disagreeableness between us. This is the
biggest myth in the world. Who cares? Because Mr. Victorino has lived
in his house for umpteen years and I am a relative newcomer of only seven
years to the County of Maui and he's paying a different rate for
comparable houses. I couldn't care less. It has nothing to do with the
discussion.
One of the things that is very important is, and I hear this all the time, is
oh, I heard what this is, this is Prop 13 California, bad, terrible. There was
an article published by, what do you call it, a tax group in California not
too long ago that said that comparing what was going on before 1978.
Well, June of 1978 was when Prop 13 went in. Until today that the
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revenue to City, County, and State Government was 4 percent more than it
would have been on an annualized basis had they used the old system.
Because as Bill mentioned and has been commented on a number of times
whether people believe it or not this system produces more revenue. You
have a greater County tax. The only difference is you get it earlier, you
get it earlier because you get it when the house, when the property changes
hands not 18 months later.
Number two it is based on a much higher value because when they
homogenize your house and her house neither one of you are where you
should be. And she's paying too much and you're paying too little and
that's just the way the system works. Universally that's a true statement.
This is absolutely not Prop 13. Prop 13 said the total tax bill cannot go up
more than 2 percent per year. We, the proposed system says it will go, the
assessment will go up 4 percent and the County Council sets the tax rate.
So, it's totally different. I mean it's, it's, absolutely there's no comparison
between the two. It is not Prop 13. Anybody tells you different.
It is conceptually?

Yeah, it's called acquisition-based property system.
That happens to be the one that people know the most about. Another guy
came up to me the other day and he said renters are really going to get hit.
The renters, and I said to him you're crazy. The renters are getting killed
here. The renters in California are paying less money for similar property
than they are on Maui. Why? What's the current tax rate for rental
property? Is it five and a half bucks, Mike? And what's the homeowner
one, Gladys? Two bucks? (silence) That means that when the guy owns
the property gets his tax bill he says, my bill went up $1,200. That's $100
a month. Somebody's got to pay that. I'll raise the rent $100. And that's
exactly what happens.
This is the most wonderful thing for creating something known as
affordable housing because you create a rental base that is not constantly
being bumped up. I have talked to a zillion different people who are
renters, and I don't mean necessarily they are renting, they are renting
their property. And they say that every time they get their new tax bill and
it's gone up some great amount, they ring their hands because they've got a
good tenant. They don't want 'em to move out and they realize that if they
do jack it up $100 a month or whatever the number is, that the people are
going to have to leave and sometimes they leave the island like the lady
did.
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Another one that I hear all the time, and so just to summarize that the
renters will benefit so much because the proposal is for all properties to be
covered under the cap of 4 percent. ... (end of tape 2B - 3:59 p.m.) ...
going to get killed because he's got to pay the retail price. I had a friend of
mine whom I've known for a number of years. I knew him back in
Massachusetts. More years ago then I want to know. He came to
California and he bought his first house and he said the only reason that he
was able to afford this and use it as a first time buyer. First house he'd
ever bought. And he now has another house and three children and a wife.
The, the only reason he was able to do it is he could absolutely schedule
out how much his taxes were going to be over the next few years knowing
that they were not going to do the 8 to 15 to $32,000 here. And it was the
greatest thing.
My son lives in Mystic, Connecticut. He has a $600,000 house. He pays
$9,000 a year taxes. To take, compare that to our numbers we pay $2, he's
paying $15. By the way that system they use is the same one that's used
here. I'd like to mention that briefly and that is that a lot of people say,
gee, the, the, the County is going to starve to death. Well, it's not true and
how do we know because you can go anywhere in the State of California
and it will absolutely tell you, no, we got more money than we would have
had the other, the other way.
Now, you say, well, how can that be if we've done all these things? Well,
I heard that in California as an example the, the, the, you know, the
colleges are just out of this world in how much money they charge, which
by the way is less than it is here in Hawaii. I know of a lady who went to
a community college in 1980 I guess it was or something like that, some
time, somewhere back then. You know what she had to pay to go to
junior college? Zero, absolutely not one penny other than to buy her
books. Now, they charge like $80 a credit hour or whatever it might be.
She then went on to the University of California at Irvine. A major
university, certainly equivalent to the University of Hawaii. You know
how much her annual bill was? Annual bill $500.
Now, this wasn't 100 years ago. This was recently. And so, when
Prop 13 came in they said, why would, does the poor little old lady from
Pasadena have to pay for the rich kid to go to UCLA or UCI or Calor
whatever it might be? And the answer was it's not fair. So, it became a
more balanced system. As COMET says the Committee for More
Equitable Taxation. The final comment that I would make is the one that I
started with and that is the present system is not fair. It is not fair. Now,
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having said that I will make this comment. We don't pay a whole lot in
property taxes compared to my son in Mystic, Connecticut. It is not that
it's so high that we all ought to be going down and shooting the local city
councilman, county councilman, state people, et cetera.
The whole point that COMET has had since the beginning is that it is not
equitable. The, the one group of people is living off of the other people.
So the flippers which is what Bill calls 'em are getting away with a free
ride and the people that stay in their house forever-Bill in two and a half
years will celebrate his family having been in the same property for 100
years, 100 years on the same property. Do we want to encourage that?
You bet. We want to make sure that these guys have the ability to go and
live on forever and ever and ever on their property and pass it on to the
children. And if people have to move because their taxes have become so
onerous that they can't afford to stay then by golly the County of, the
County Council of the County of Maui needs to take a good hard look and
say let us see if we can go and fix this. And that's why we are here today.
That's a summary of the whole thing. It is not complicated at all. It is
very, very, very simple. And I would entertain questions from everybody,
Mr. Chair, and I thank you for the opportunity to do this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Fisher. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You had something to say first, sir? You
were ...
CHAIRPONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Go ahead. Okay. Tony, thank you
for that presentation. I think we've done this before but I think you've
bought it in a more simplistic matter for people to understand. I think
that's important. Let me ask you this if you went only 4 percent assessed
value, and that's what we're talking about assessed value, if a house is
$100,000, real simple, the next year the most it could go up to is 104,000.
Isn't that correct?
MR. FISHER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, with the things we have in place now
such as the Circuit Breaker, such as the 300,000 exemption, would those
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things be still necessitated? Do you think we still need that or will by
having a fair equitable system like you're proposing that it would eliminate
these big spikes like what were talking about?
MR. FISHER: That is an extremely good question. The issue on the, on the
County of Maui has always been that there is a leaning toward the
homeowners. Thank heavens. That's the reason I can live here. So, if
you, and that's what the Circuit Breaker and the 300,000 exemption, the
44,000 people who are not homeowners are certainly paying more. The
question of the Council has to be and the Finance Department, obviously
as well, is do you want to, to retain that? If the answer is the same, then
you can leave 'em in place and it should have no effect whatsoever. If in
fact you want to bury that and bring down other tax rates, remember the
most important aspect of this over any other system by the way
Massachusetts, Colorado, California, et cetera, all of those places have a
cap on everything. Now we have deliberately done, this is a Maui County
tax reform system not a, oh, we took this out of here. So, if you want to
leave the situation, the imbalance if you will then that's perfectly okay. It
will still work.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Why do you think we have, and you
mentioned a couple of times in your presentation this so-called 18 months
behind the actual valued, you know, acquisition of a property? You know
when somebody buys a property it takes, and you mentioned this about 18
months to get that in the tax system. Homeowner or not, whatever it
might be. Why do you think that is? I mean we're computerized today
right aren't we supposed to be able to be more up-to-date. Why do you
think it takes so long?
MR. FISHER: Well, the number one reason is obviously that you only assess
once a year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. FISHER: This system says you assess every single time a piece of property
changes hands. And the only people you don't assess on are the people
that the property doesn't change.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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MR. FISHER: So, the, the major reason is since you only assess once a year and
it's as of January 18t and as you are all well aware when do you know what
those assessments were? March 15th . Correct?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Correct.
MR. FISHER: So, it takes fourteen and a half months just to get through the
system. So if somebody sold something on January 18t of 2007 that would
not be reflected until at least March 15 of 2008. So there is an automatic
built in because you only do it once a year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. FISHER: And so that's the biggest reason. The, the, the major problem with
that system is that as long as you are evaluating all properties against all
other properties in a zone, in a zone, then there is all sorts of sorting out
numbers and so forth and so on that also delay the whole process. But
that's the average is, and some of the times it's longer than that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And the last question is, and I, and I
don't know, I don't see it and something that it's really kind of off the
subj ect but still part of the subj ect matter. And I was talking with
Mr. Young earlier about it and something that we have to look at. Is when
properties are classified in a certain classification but being sold or being
used in other classifications, a.k.a., example someone buys 240 acres of
agricultural land at, and, and, and they buy it at-MR. FISHER: At Ag rates.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --1.9 million, 1.9 million. I tell you exactly
what they bought it 1.9 million. But when you, and they bought it two
years ago in 2005, but yet on the assessed value because it's Ag and there's
no change with Ag according to Mr. Young, it's still being taxed at
$27,100. They pay all of $161.25, which I look at what we're talking
about equitable. Well, that's even a bigger inequity than I could ever find.
So, part of your proposal will, is there anything to change how we can
change classifications or is that something we got to look at in a separate
issue? Because I just think that's a real unfair situation. And it happens a
lot when people buy large chunks of land that's undeveloped.
MR. FISHER: And then they use 'em for another purpose.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's correct.
MR. FISHER: The answer to your question is, no, this does not-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. FISHER: --except for this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. FISHER: Let's suppose--what did you say it was assessed at? Twenty-seven
thousand five hundred dollars?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
dollars.

Twenty-seven thousand one hundred

MR. FISHER: I've got better ones than that. I've got one for $100 that's 4 million
but that's a whole different story.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. FISHER: When the property is sold so he, maybe he subdivides and makes
into fourths or maybe he just sells the whole 1.9 million worth.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. FISHER: And he sells it to somebody else for 1.9 million. It is
automatically reassessed at 1.9 million, right, and that's, that's where there
is, I forget the term that I used to use but there is a certain amount of that
kind of money which is living out there, and the minute it changes hands it
just automatically resets. Does anybody have any big thing that they can
do with it? Absolutely not. It's, it's the way it is. If it's, if it's assessed at
27,000 and it sells for 1.9 million, it is reassessed to 1.9 million. Is that
fair? You bet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. FISHER: Because there's a little old lady living in Pukalani that's, have to
move out of her house. I had a lady, a friend of mine recently who told
me that she lived in the big house and rented the ohana on a long-term
basis. We won't get into TVRs. That's a whole different issue. And she
had to move from the big house into the little house in order to have the
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income in order to pay her taxes. That's, that's unfair if some guy has got
that kind of a situation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Tony. And, and thank you for
addressing my questions. I appreciate it. I'll yield to the other Members.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
questions? Member Molina.

Members, any more

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon,
Mr. Fisher and Mr. Tavares. Thank you for your presentation. Looking at
the ordinance it's mentioned that the, I'll just read it verbatim. Section one
the last sentence, "also exceptions have been made to protect tax
assessments for residents of Maui 55 and over who move to a different
property and exchanges as among certain family members." Can, can you
explain to us why the age of 55 was selected or the rationale for 55 being
chosen?
MR. FISHER: It could have been 50. It could have been 60. It could have been
65. That number comes directly out of the Proposition 13 number. This
is, well, actually it was Proposition 60. It came out of there. Somebody in
their wisdom said 55. If this group decided that should be 60 or 65 it
makes absolutely no difference whatsoever. The main thing of it is when
is a parent with a big house going to move out and start looking for
something smaller. The answer is probably around 55 that's not a bad ...
If you get married at 20 that's 35 years later probably most of the children
will have moved out and that that would be a good time.
That was how it was computed back then. Does it still make sense? I
don't know maybe it doesn't make as much sense here but that is a County
Council determination. And since it's an ordinance by the way you could
set it at 55, and ten years from now say, gee, it really ought to be 60, and
change because that's why it is an ordinance. It is, you know, up to the
County Council to make those kinds of determinations.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, it's basically a number you're using as sort
of! guess maybe starting point or-MR. FISHER: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --something. Okay.
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MR. FISHER: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, and then my question was you, you
mentioned about the, the first time homebuyer would negatively affected.
Can you elaborate a little bit more? It would seem like the, the bill is I
guess more advantageous for someone who is 55 and above whereas the
first time homebuyer could be in some ways penalized. Can you give us a
little bit more?
MR. FISHER: Well, the biggest problem and I heard these from some
homebuyers now, first time homebuyers, they said, you know, and we're
all living with right now the, the mortgage thing where people got over
extended. Correct?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. FISHER: Nationwide everybody is, got some problems with that. Add to
that the fact that their taxes went from 2,000 to 3,000 to 5,000 to 8,000.
They get killed by that. The biggest advantage is that in an increasing
market place where the values are going up, the first time homebuyer
knows what risk he has or she has relative to taxes in the future. And so,
this is a plus not a minus. And those that think it's a minus, and it's a
minus have never talked as I have to a lot of people who are first time
buyers. They are universally saying I have to budget myself. And it's, it's
hard enough to go and budget this thing just because I got an adjustable
rate mortgage or one of those kind of things.
But with the taxes going up so fast, and there are a lot of people that have
had to move. There was a comment made on CNBC the other day that
thank heavens the taxes have kind of leveled off nationwide because they
were driving more people to foreclosure then the ARM, the adjustable rate
mortgages. That that was a real killer for the first time buyer. And that
was on television like last week. So, it's, it's a good thing for first time
buyers and the people that think to the contrary do not know first time
buyers.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you, Mr. Fisher. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros followed by Member
Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Fisher,
And, Mr. Tavares, for your presentation. I have just one question because
my, a lot of my questions have been asked or I, I want to ask the
Department some questions. But my question to you is in your, you know,
intense research in proposing this tax reform for real property tax, are
there other counties in Hawaii that use your proposed system?
MR. FISHER: Conceptually the answer is yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And ...
MR. FISHER: The County of Kauai got into a fistfight literally with the, with the
County Council. I mean it was people were actually getting ready to go,
you know, step out in the hall with me. And we have always tried to say
we can sit down and have a meeting like this and, and not get angry with
each other. They failed. They then went to the, to the referendum. Got it
passed. It was then reversed by the courts but that's a whole different
issue. But the County Council then said the people here want this and so
they all by themselves without any other peoples beating 'em over the
head put a cap on it. What's the cap? Two percent. Personally, I think
2 percent is, and we talked to the people in Kauai all the time about, you
know, which is right and which is wrong.
In fact, I went over to Kauai and spent some time with the head of that
group and, and I said to Walter that, during a lunch one day, I said Walter
I think 2 percent is too low. And he made some disparaging remarks
about how people spend too much money.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. FISHER: And all things being equal ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Fisher, wait. I, I think you've answered
my question.
MR. FISHER: Well, I was going to get to Hawaii.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. FISHER: The Big Island also put it in with Mayor Harry Kim went and
unilaterally did what we're doing here presented a, and I have copies of
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that, and he put it at 3 percent. Once again I think that's too low. He also
only did it for homeowners. And by the way the one in Kauai is only
homeowners. They do not have 300,000-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Home exemptions.
MR. FISHER: --home exemptions and they don't have Circuit Breakers. It's kind
of along the line of what Mr. Molina was commenting a few moments ago
that there's balance, I mean Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, you're saying that Kauai and the County-

MR. FISHER: Mr. Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
homeowners?

--of Hawaii has this but only for

MR. FISHER: At 3 percent rather than 4 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No. I'm talking about the proposed system
you're using.
MR. FISHER: They have a version of it. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: They have a version of it. On both islands?
MR. FISHER: It does not have the over 55. It does not have the grandparent,
parent thing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But the significant part about it
percentage you're talking about.

IS

the

MR. FISHER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Mr. Chair.

I see.

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you,

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Chair. And I'd like, I'd like to thank
you very much for putting this item on your agenda today. I have great
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interest in it and I'm very excited that we're here talking about this.
Mr. Tavares you mentioned that you had been working or trying to
propose something for a number of years. How many?
MR. TAVARES: Well, since 1988. A group of us suddenly--oh, I'm sorry. A
group of us, imagine, being shocked when the, when the, the rise in taxes
must have been relatively slow compared to what's happening today. But
we sensed and one of the ladies in the audience has called us visionary
way back then. Now, that time Hannibal, my dear cousin, was Mayor and
he said, Bill, you guys should do something. We were shocked. I had just
given away a beautiful piece of property in Kuau on Lamalani Cove,
which is part of Tavares Bay named after my dad I think. And the value
then was three dollars and a half per square foot. Today, if I walk on my
son's oceanfront lot I walk very gingerly, you know, like a ballet dancer
because that square foot of land is now worth 150 smackers.
And I, I, we were so shocked even at the relatively when you compare it
with today's unbelievable increases how did this happen? I have to tell
you, Hannibal with the exception of one other mayor now in office I hope
was the only Mayor who ever supported us. Had a bill written out, an
ordinance setting a cap, it died. But we did have cooperative Councils
even then and they did give us these, you know, increasing home
exemptions. But, yes, we were shocked. I don't know how I was so
shocked then. I'm beyond being shocked now. I'm spitting bullets right
now. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. The reason I ask you the question is,
you know, it seems like such a viable idea, and obviously it's catching on
not only in other places but here in Hawaii.
MR. TAVARES: I hope.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That it appears to me that we really should take a
look at it. And, you know, in my other life I was an accountant. I'm very
interested in the numbers. I really would like us to sit down and pencil out
what this might mean to Maui County in terms of revenues. I think it's
really important because we all know that we gotta pay our bills and we
have to have a certain amount of income to do that. And so, I would like
somebody to sit down and, you know, figure this out and say, okay, if we
go to this system more or less this is what is going to happen to the County
revenues. And then we would know.
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The reason why I'm so interested in this is of course I have a personal
interest but I receive more phone calls about property tax bills that have
escalated so dramatically and what the hardships it's putting on families
then any other issue that I get in my office. And so, I think we owe it to
the taxpayers of Maui County to at least have a full and open discussion
and to put the numbers on the table so that the Council can make a good
decision. I can go either way but, you know, like I said until I really look
at the numbers I'm, I'm liking it. It sounds like a very reasonable thing. It
makes sense but we again need to look at the numbers.
So, the other thing I wanted to comment about was with the first time
homebuyers. You know if we feel and Maui County has been very
generous to its first time homebuyers also. In fact, we just recently setup a
fund to help them be able to buy homes. And we don't want to hurt them
of course by causing probably tax problems for them. I think that it's an
issue we could address in our ordinance and give some kind of
consideration to first time homebuyers who qualify income wise. So, I
don't think that there are things that cannot be worked out if we decide to
take a look at it. Mr. Fisher, any comments?
MR. FISHER: I couldn't agree with you more. As I mentioned in the previous
question about the, the Circuit Breaker and the homeowners exemption
and the over 55 and the parents, grandparents, is there a place for a
paragraph in here that says we want to go and deal with the first time
homebuyer because we want to encourage them to buy? Can we craft
some language in there that would help them? Absolutely. Has it been
done in other states? You bet. So, we don't have to reinvent the wheel.
And I, I would be more than happy to sit down with people and say what
is the, you know, go out and get some first time homebuyers and go ask
them what they think is fair. Now, we don't want to overdo it because we
do not want to put that first time homebuyer in a place where he is over
extended as has been done. But it's absolutely and positively I agree with
you entirely.
The main thing that this does is after he has made the commitment and
he's bought the house and he's moved in and he's sitting down and he
looks at it and all of sudden he gets his second tax bill and says, holy cow,
I can't afford this. I've got to sell this house in order to get into something
smaller. And that's what we would love to be able to, so we protect him
there. And if there's a way and I have some first five years kind of thing
and you got to stay there, and some language of that nature I think you're
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absolutely right on, but it needs to be independent of the main body just as
the over 55 and the grandparent thing is.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I think that's really important because one of the
first criticisms that was made when your proposal was made quite a few
months ago when you, when you gave to us to take a look at, somebody
told me, you know, this isn't fair. It's leaning towards only senior citizens.
And that is totally not true. And, you know, if we try to take care of the
first time homebuyers also those will probably not be seniors. And so, I
think we, we can come up with something if we put our minds to it.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa.
MR. FISHER: Good question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Fisher, when
you were answering Mr. Medeiros question about other counties you said
Kauai has got a 2 percent cap on their increased in assessed valuations?
MR. FISHER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the Big Island has a 3 percent-MR. FISHER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --cap on their ...
MR. FISHER: Homeowners only.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. But they haven't, in other words,
they are I guess restricting the market value assessments by putting these
caps on the assessed valuation increases.
MR. FISHER: No. As a matter of fact they are not. They are still going to
continue on because people will pay whatever the market value for the
property is.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But then are you saying that they are using
an acquisition-based assessment?
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MR. FISHER: No, I don't think so. No, I don't think so.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
valuation ...

But if there's a cap on the assessed

MR. FISHER: If you stay--remember I said there were two kinds of people. You
stay in your house for the whole year or you move. If you move, well,
you do one thing. If you stay there, they've capped the people that stay
there in their house.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, if people move and I'm talking about
the Big Island or Kauai.
MR. FISHER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
If people sell the property then it's
reassessed at the market value-MR. FISHER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --of the sale?
MR. FISHER: That's my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Then that would be acquisition-based.
MR. FISHER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So they have adopted the acquisition based-

MR. FISHER: Concept.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --concept like you're asking us to do.
MR. FISHER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the only difference--because you didn't
say that.
MR. FISHER: Two, 3, and 4 percent.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know you didn't, you didn't touch on
the acquisition-based assessment. So ...
MR. FISHER: I'm not absolutely sure so I would have to go and find out which I
will do so and get back to all the Members of the, of the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
understand--

Well, I think that's important for us to

MR. FISHER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --because, you know, just having a 2 or 3
percent cap doesn't tell the whole story if there's another mechanism that
they use to increase assessed valuations when the property sells. But, you
know, I like the idea that there's a cap. And that implies that they don't
reassess at market value. They reassess, they only reassess at the 2 or 3
percent increase. Is that a correct understanding?
MR. FISHER: What you say is one of the two ways and I do not have answer for
you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Well, I think you ...
MR. FISHER: But I will find that out and will get back to all of the Members of
the County Council.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean that would good, be good to know,
Mr. Chairman, because if they've already done it and what, what other
assessed, assessment base they're using and we knew what it was it would
be a good comparative for us to look at. And, you know, I like the idea of
a 4 percent cap. I see you guys took out the rollback, which I like.
MR. FISHER: Which could be put back in if this Council determines that that's
something that is good. We have mixed emotions within the COMET
group.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, and I have mixed emotions about that
too because we don't know what the outcome would be.
MR. FISHER: Yup.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, I would like to know from our
Finance Department if they have a program in place, Mr. Chair, where
they could run some numbers for us and give us some comparative
analysis like Mr. Blumer-Buell was talking about so that we would have,
you know, we don't want to, we, we need some firm figures here to see
what we're doing before we do it. And so, that would be, be my question.
MR. FISHER: Now, we did do that two years ago if you recall when they gave us
a diskette with all of the data for all of the sales for the previous five years
and we found out that just having done the acquisition based part of it, just
on the properties that sold would have meant a $20 million per year
greater amount of money.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In other words, having their assessed, their,
their taxes assessed at the market or the acquisition value within one
months time rather than in 18 months time-MR. FISHER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --the increased tax revenue would be
somewhere in the neighborhood of 20 million.
MR. FISHER: Per year.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. FISHER: And that's, that was a, just to, you know, put a lot of money in the
County's pocket. I thought the question you were going to ask by the way
which I didn't cover in my remarks was what happened to these other two
counties particularly relative to something which some of us heard in this
room about, oh, our bond ratings are going to go in the, you know, down
the tubes as a result of this. And there was even a letter published that,
that intimated that that occurred. And then I went and picked up the
phone and called the gentleman at the UBS, which is the bond rating
people in San Francisco and I asked him only two questions. One, did you
say that and he said no. I just said we'd rather not have any restrictions at
all. I said okay. And number two, what happened in Kauai and Hawaii?
He said actually ... (end of tape 3A - 4:29 p.m.) ... they put in the
3 percent, 2 percent then they actually went up.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, Mr. Chairman ...
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MR. FISHER: About the same amount by the way as Maui so there wasn't any,
and I said well how can that be. He said that part of it is one part but
there's 100 different things that we look at in the way that a county is run.
And if the county is well run and if people aren't for instance doing the
cap on both assessments and rates then that's a heck of a lot better thing
from our standpoint. So, he said absolutely, positively. I said, because the
question I finally asked him was if they were to put this system in would
the bond ratings go down. He said I have no way of knowing that but it
has not happened in the other two counties where an even more onerous
system was installed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So that wasn't going to be one of my
questions but thank you anyway. Mr. Chair, if maybe we could send a
letter to the County of Hawaii and the County of Kauai requesting
information on the changes they've made to their tax assessment system
and what the impacts have been. Any kind of documentation that they
could give us to help us further, you know, review this and that would be
helpful to our Finance Department also. And, and as I said the question I
had for Finance if maybe we can, I don't know if we're going to have time
today to allow that but ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, the Chair is intending to adjourn in a couple of
minutes-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --because we do have another meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Land Use Committee meeting at 5:30.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: You read my mind in regards to following up with the
County of Hawaii as well as the County of Kauai. And, and we'll write
something to the Finance Department in regards to some information that
are being requested. But before we adjourn I'd like to have the Finance
Director provide us with some comments and, and as soon as the
comments is made by the Director the Chair is intending to defer this item.
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MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. On behalf of the Administration I would
like to caution the Members on, too vigorously pursuing a measure that
would affect real property tax revenue. Real property tax revenue is the
single largest revenue component available to the County.
The
Administration would oppose any restriction to artificially limit the real
property tax base to the extent that it may affect or compromise the ability
of the County to fund near-term, short-term, and future expenses that the
County would require in the way of infrastructure, increased services, and
other looming expenses that some of the, that the Council may have
already been given notice of.
It would be not prudent to prevent the ability to gather the needed revenue
especially when the County and the Council has already demonstrated its
ability to prudently exercise its flexibility in generating revenue. I would
tell you that in terms of real property taxes it accounts for roughly
50 percent of the entire revenue of the annual County budget. And as
every Member knows, if you restrict or deny the County ability to collect
real property tax, the only question you need to ask is where do you want
to make up the additional revenue and from what source because they are
very limited in terms of what the County has available to it.
If you want to limit the amount of real property tax a particular segment of
the population has to pay, that is not a problem for the Department of
Finance or the Administration. But what would be a problem is to point
out that in order to make the same amount of revenue to fund County
operations that lost revenue would have to be made up by a separate class
of taxpayers. So that's a social question and philosophy that the Council
will have to answer when it further deliberates this measure.
In terms of the issues of equity or fairness I do believe that there is an
equity issue that needs to be answered because if we are to contend that
the fact that one person pays less property taxes than their neighbor simply
because they've lived their longer, the same could be held true if you
looked at why does one person not pay less water bill or home refuse
collection by the nature of the fact that they've lived in the same locale.
Because real property taxes pay for the same type of government services
that we are talking about as home refuse collection, as water services. So
to say that one particular property should pay less for services than say
another is a sociological question and philosophy that should be answered
in terms of the issue of equity and fairness. And I think it is warranted.
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I do agree that there are some aspects or components of the overall system
that make some amount of sense. The amount of reassessing to the
acquisition price does make some logical sense. The issue of capping the
assessment though to a artificial amount, we know that the amount of real
property tax that was necessary to generate the, the current year's County
budget needed to increase by more than 4 percent and definitely more than
CPI. If this measure is applied to all property tax classifications, please
bear in mind that it will mean commercial, industrial, hotel, timeshare
properties will also be capped. And those properties do not have the same
rate of exchange or transfer in any given year that residential properties
have.
To cap hotel properties to no more than 4 percent would be below the
amount of increase that they've, that they have experienced in the last
several years. And let's not forget that hotel properties generate the lion
share of real property tax. It is not the homeowner's classification. There
are, there are a number of other issues, Mr. Chair, that the Administration
is concerned of and we are confident that as this Committee and the
Council itself further deliberates this item we'll have, we'll have opportune
time to bear them out. Thank you for the opportunity to comment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Young. Members, it's that time that I
know we've gone beyond 4:30. At this time, I'd like to thank both
Mr. Fisher and Mr. Tavares for being here to present the COMET
proposal. As noted the Chair will defer this item without any objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. FISHER: .. . (Inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Fisher.
MR. FISHER: The only comment that I would make to the Finance Director's
remarks is that the whole objective of this project has been to increase
revenue. And to arbitrarily say that it is not, that it is going to decrease
revenue is just absolutely not true and I am offended that you would say
that. Because it is not ...
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Chair, I did not say that this measure is not to increase
revenue. However, we must, please bear in mind that if you're going to
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increase revenue on one side and yet you want a certain portion of the
population to have reduced revenue, increased revenue is an entire bubble
so one portion would have to pay more than the other. And, and I didn't
say that this measure was in any way to either reduce revenue or increase
revenue.
MR. FISHER: Yes, you did.
MR. YOUNG: I only cautioned to be cautious in that regards.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members ...
MR. FISHER: No more comments.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. This meeting ... if there's no objection the,
the Chair would like to defer this item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
. . . (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

Thank you very much.

This meeting is adjourned .

4:40p.m.

APPROVED:

~~L-&
OSEPH P TANILLA, Chair
Budget and Finance Comrmttee
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